ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 9, 2011
3:46 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representative Craig Johnson, Vice Chair
Representati ve M ke Chenaul t
Represent ati ve Dan Saddl er
Representative Steve Thonpson
Representative Bob M1l er

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes
OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT
REPRESENTATI VE SCOTT KAWASAK
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 155
“"An Act relating to public construction contracts."”

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 122

"An Act relating to naturopaths and to the practice of
nat ur opat hy; establishing an Al aska Naturopathic Mdical Board,;
aut hori zing nedi cal assistance program coverage of naturopathic
services; anmending the definition of 'practice of nedicine' ; and
providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 164

"An Act relating to insurance; relating to health care
i nsurance, exenption of certain insurers, reporting, notice, and

recor d- keepi ng requi renents for I nsurers, bi ogr aphi cal
affidavits, qualifications of alien insurers assum ng ceded
i nsurance, risk-based capital for insurers, insurance holding
conpani es, I i censing, f eder al requi renents for nonadmtted
i nsurers, surplus lines insurance, i nsurance fraud, life

i nsurance policies and annuity contracts, rate filings by health

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- March 9, 2011



care insurers, long-term care insurance, autonobile service
corporations, guaranty fund deposits of a title insurer, joint
title plants, del i nquency  proceedi ngs, fraternal benefi t
societies, multiple enployer welfare arrangenents, hospital and
medi cal service cor por ati ons, and heal th mai nt enance
organi zations; and providing for an effective date."

- BILL HEARI NG CANCELED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 155

SHORT TITLE: PUBLI C CONSTRUCTI ON CONTRACTS
SPONSOR(s): LABOR & COMVERCE

02/ 11/ 11 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 11/ 11 (H L&C

02/ 25/ 11 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124
02/ 25/ 11 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 25/ 11 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 28/ 11 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124
02/ 28/ 11 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 28/ 11 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 07/ 11 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124
03/ 07/ 11 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 07/ 11 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 09/ 11 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124
BILL: HB 122

SHORT TI TLE: NATUROPATHS
SPONSOR(s): MUNOZ

01/ 26/ 11 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 26/ 11 (H L&C, HSS, FIN

02/ 28/ 11 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

02/ 28/ 11 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 28/ 11 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 09/ 11 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

LARRY SEMVENS, City Manager

City of Soldotna

Sol dot na, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 155.

REPRESENTATI VE TAMM E W LSON

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- March 9, 2011



Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

M KE BOVI TZ, Oamner
Met al wor ks, LLC
Juneau, Al aska

PCsSI TI ON STATEMENT:

GREG FULGHAM  Owner

Ful Jenn Tree Service

Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

GARY CONTENTO

Testified during the discussion of HB 155.

Testified in opposition to HB 155.

Testified in opposition to HB 155.

Al aska Laborers Trai ning School

Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

Testified in opposition to HB 155.

ALBERTO MORENO, Menber

Laborers Local 942
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

Testified in opposition to HB 155.

DAVI D LI TTLETON, Menber

Laborers Local 341
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

Testified in opposition to HB 155.

KEI TH MONTGOVERY, on behal f of M. LeFebre, hearing inpaired

Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

M KE HODSTON, Menber

Testified in opposition to HB 155.

I nternati onal Brotherhood of Electrical Wrkers (1 BEW

Local 1547
Pal mer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

AMOS HUDSON
Ket chi kan, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

GARY PI KUS, Menber
Pil edrivers, Bridge,
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE

Testified in opposition to HB 155.

Testified in opposition to HB 155.

Dock Builders & Divers Local 2520

Testified in opposition to HB 155.

- 3- March 9, 2011



PATRI CK MCDONALD, Apprentice

| nternational Brotherhood of Electrical Wrkers (1 BEW
Local 1547

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 155.

W LLI AM CLAY, Menber

| nternational Brotherhood of Electrical Wrkers (1 BEW
Local 1547

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 155.

ROBERT M TCHELL
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 155.

GARY SANDERSON, Menber

I nternational Brotherhood of Electrical Wrkers (IBEW Local
1547

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 155.

TOM ALEXANDER, Retired

| nt ernati onal Brotherhood of Electrical Wrkers (IBEW
Local 1547

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 155.

SANDY W LLI AVS
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 122.

DAVI D OTTESEN
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 122.

JANE MADI SON
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 122.

WAYNE ALDERHOLT
Hormer, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 122.

MARY ANN FOLAND, Physician, |Imredi ate Past President
Al aska Acadeny of Fam |y Physici ans;

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- March 9, 2011



Presi dent - El ect, Al aska State Medical Association
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 122.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:46: 44 PM

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:46 p.m Representatives d son,
Saddl er, Thonpson, and MIller were present at the call to order
Representatives Chenault and Johnson arrived as the neeting was
i n progress.

HB 155- PUBLI C CONSTRUCTI ON CONTRACTS

3:46:59 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 155, "An Act relating to public construction
contracts."

3:47: 21 PM

LARRY SEMVENS, City Manager, City of Soldotna, stated that the
Cty of Soldotna strongly supports increasing the m ninum
threshold for requiring Title 36 wages to apply. He offered his
belief that government has the responsibility to keep costs |ow,
but the public perception of governnent is such that governnent
costs greatly exceed private sector costs. He said everyone in
t he business knows that the Little Davis-Bacon Act (LDBA) mnakes
it inpossible for governnments in Alaska to be cost effective on
smal| projects. He stated that prevailing wages are significant
higher in his area. He related a scenario in which a |ocal non-
union contractor quoted |abor at $22 per hour, whereas the

prevailing wage quote is $42 per hour. He said he understands
the bill does not concern the prevailing wage, but prevailing
wages significantly inmpact the cost of small projects. |In fact,

sonme projects would not get built when the LDBA applies. He
related his understanding that LDBA also prohibits volunteer
| abor on snmall projects such as trails, which is unfortunate
since youth groups and ot her agenci es benefit.

MR. SEMMENS offered his belief that significant costs are
associated with LDBA projects for the contractor and owner.
From the owner's perspective, the owner nust evaluate the
project to decide if Alaska Statutes Title 36 applies, which
contain the LDBA provision and if so the contractor nust adhere

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- March 9, 2011



to additional reporting requirenents. On snaller projects, a
contractor may be discouraged from submitting a bid due to the
additional costs to conply with the LDBA while wusing |arger
contractors wusually results in additional construction costs.

However, the concern that out of state contractors wll be
awarded jobs is mtigated in Soldotna due to |ocal bidder
pr ef er ences. He assured conmittee nenbers the Cty of Soldotna
is diligent in selecting conpetent contractors. Wen the LDBA
applies on a project the owner nust submt to additional
verification, audits, and other docunentation. Muni cipalities
continue to be affected by declining revenue and i ncreasing
costs. This bill would reduce costs by increasing the threshold

for when the LDBA would apply. He offered his belief that HB
155 would increase the nunmber of small projects available and
will increase the quality of life for Al askans. He said he
hoped nenbers would pass HB 155 and increase the m ninum
threshold to at |east $50, 000.

3:52: 04 PM

REPRESENTATIVE TAM E WLSON, Alaska State Legislature stated
t hat she represents 33 percent of the 109 road service districts
in the Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB). She reported that
nost of the road service areas (RSAs) in her district are snall

ranging from a half mle to two mles. She expl ai ned how the
LDBA process applies in her district. In the event a road
service area wishes to replace a sign, it is categorized as a
capital project and not maintenance project. Wen three signs

are needed the cost would be $500 and could be perforned outside
t he LDBA provisions. However, when a road service area al so has
a few potholes that need to be repaired the overall cost m ght
be increased to $1, 000. Once again, the project would fall
outside the LDBA provisions. If the RSA decided the culverts
needed cleaning adding culverts to the project would cost
anot her $1, 000. Thus, when the projects are |unped together,
which frequently happens with LDBA projects, the total for the
three projects would be $2,500 and would trigger the LDBA

provi si ons. Consequently the earlier projects would also be
charged at the LDBA rates. Any new material placed on a road
woul d be considered construction and not maintenance work. At
this point the RSAs cannot afford to have work done unless they
increase their mll rate. She said she has nothing against the
unions, but nost of the projects for the RSAs are not union
proj ects. She suggested the definitions need to be changed.

She al so suggested the threshold be increased from $2, 000. She
agreed that the $300 to $400 thousand projects should adhere to
LDBA provisions, but the RSAs need relief from "maintenance

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- March 9, 2011



wor k" that bankrupts them in her region. She concluded by
sayi ng she desperately needs a remedy for her district.

3:54:52 PM

M KE BOvITZ, Ower, Metalworks, LLC, stated that he is a
contractor in Juneau. He spoke in opposition to HB 155. He
related that nuch of his work falls under the smaller project
category, ranging from $50, 000-$75, 000. These projects keep his
two workers enployed year round plus an additional four workers
enpl oyed for part of the year.

CHAIR OLSON commented that the bill has been amended to a
$50, 000 t hreshol d.

MR BOVITZ stated that sone of his work falls in the $10, 000-
$20, 000 range but even the small projects in the $5,000 range
keep his workers enployed throughout the year. He offered his
belief that this bill could adversely inpact Al askans. He said
it is not a union or nonunion issue so all workers may suffer
It hard to live on $22 per hour, he said. He stressed his
opposition to the bill.

3:57:10 PM

GREG FULGHAM Owner, Ful Jenn Tree Service, stated that he is
tree cutter in Juneau. He expressed concern that cutting the
wages by increasing the threshold for the LDBA would adversely
i mpact him and Al askans. He expressed concern for his workers
who risk bodily harm cutting trees. He explained that nost of
his jobs are under $50,000 so this bill would directly affect
him He concluded by stating he is totally opposed to the bill.
3:59:10 PM

GARY CONTENTO, Staff, Alaska Laborers Training School, stated
that he is opposed to this bill. He works with | ocal Fairbanks
youth and turns down numerous people due to a |ack of jobs. He
expressed concern that |owering wages wll bring in out of state
wor ker s.

4:00: 33 PM

ALBERTO MORENO, Menber, Laborers Local 942, stated he strongly
opposes HB 155. He believes this bill would encourage out of
state conpanies to bid for work in Al aska which will bring a

lower paid work force in from the Lower 48 to displace Al askan

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- March 9, 2011



wor ker s. The current state |aw supports a healthy living wage
and changes coul d adversely affect wages and create the need for
subsidies. Please do not pass HB 155 fromthe commttee.

4:02: 20 PM
DAVI D LI TTLETON, Menber, Laborers Local 341, stated he strongly

opposes HB 155. He has been a resident of Alaska for 31 years.
He offered his belief that raising the threshold for prevailing

wages woul d drive down the wages in the state. It would lead to
crippling Al aska's econonmy by no longer providing a livable
income to the residents. It would force working famlies to
barely make a |iving. It would lower the quality of work by
attracting substandard workers to perform skilled jobs. Pl ease
| eave the Ilaw along. The proposed changes in HB 155 are
danger ous, unnecessary, and will not save the state noney in the
| ong run.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked how nuch of his work has been done
subject to the LDBA

MR, LITTLETON answered that 60 percent of his work is under the
LDBA and the renmi nder is based on the prevailing wages.

4:04:11 PM

KEI TH MONTGOMERY, on behalf of M. LeFebre, stated he is
representing M. LeFebre, who is hearing inpaired. M. LeFebre
asked him to speak in opposition to HB 155. This bill is
unnecessary, would erode the standard of Iliving, and could
conprom se the safety on public infrastructure.

4:05:14 PM

M KE HODSTON, Menber, International Brotherhood of Electrical
Wrkers (I BEW Local 1547, state that he has lived in Al aska for
51 years. He said he has been an active nenber of the
community. He has watched the state grow. He has been a nenber
of IBEW for 30 years. He was trained in an apprenticeship
program and has worked exclusively in Al aska. He has raised a
great famly. Hs father was part of the industry. He
expressed concern that HB 155 would erode the standard of
l'iving. He understood an anmendment woul d change the threshol d.
He offered his belief that it will not save noney for the state.
He thought this represents a bad precedent. He said, "You get
what you pay for." Spending less by hiring cheaper workers wll
have the effect of lowering the wages for the work force. The

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- March 9, 2011



enployer's profit is not at risk. The quality of work in the
public sector would not be guaranteed and could result in |ower
quality public projects. The public deserves a higher quality
of work on projects. This bill is unnecessary as the state has
a large surplus and there is not any rational reason to exenpt
out the LDBA jobs. He asked the commttee not to vote for this
bill.

CHAIR COLSON conmented that the threshold has not been adjusted
for 75 years since it was adopted in 1935.

4:09: 35 PM
AMOS HUDSON spoke in opposition to HB 155. He stated that he

supports his famly as a fifth year apprentice electrician. He
expressed concern that just as he is ready to finish his

apprenticeship changes could adversely affect his job. He
commented that since the state currently has a surplus this bil
is unnecessary. This bill would take noney out of the hands of
Al askan workers and citizens. He urged nenbers to oppose the
bill.

4:11: 30 PM

GARY PI KUS, Menber, Piledrivers, Bridge, Dock Builders & Divers
Local 2520, stated that raising the threshold to $75,000 for
LDBA woul d bring in out of state contractors, who could underbid

uni on contractors. This would make the wunion firnms non-
conpetitive with nonunion firms. He expressed concern that the
nonuni on contractors would seek exceptions. He thought the

practice of lunping jobs together was a result of too much
government and | ess governnent is needed, which would help North
Pol e. He recalled earlier testinony and pointed out that
workers need to eat and nmke house paynents. He related that
seasonal workers nust save sone noney earned during the sumrer
to see them through the wnter. He said he is opposed to this
bill. He said, "W need to keep things as they are, support
| ess governnent, and things m ght nove along pretty good.™

4:14:14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT comrented that he did not think the LDBA
is an issue between union and nonuni on workers but the testinony
seens to make it an issue. He said he has many friends are both
uni on and nonuni on. He offered his belief that just because
soneone is a union worker does not nean he/she is the best
person to do the job or the only people with qualifications to

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- March 9, 2011



do the job. He knows people in nonunion trades that could
conpete or exceed union workers. He clarified that he is not
drawing a distinction between either one. This bill does not
have anything to do with union versus nonunion |abor or pride of
wor kmanshi p. He asserted that nonunion people have just as nuch
pride in their work as any of the union people. He hoped the
di scussion could nove away from union and nonunion and get to
the crux of the issue. He said that the crux of the problemis
the threshold has not been changed in 75 years yet wages have
changed.

CHAIR OLSON offered that he hopes to provide information on
wages in 1935 for nenbers to consider with respect to this
i ssue.

4:16: 33 PM

PATRI CK MCDONALD, Apprentice, | nt er nat i onal Br ot her hood of
El ectrical Wrkers (IBEW Local 1547, stated he is an apprentice
el ectrician. He testified in opposition to HB 155. He offered
his belief that novenents in the Lower 48 states such as
II'linois, Wsconsin, and Chio would | ower the standard of |iving
for all working nen and wonen in this country, whether they are
uni on or nonuni on. He thought the sponsor missed sonething,
that if the LDBA threshold is raised, wages wll fall. He
remarked that if it happens he would not have nobney to buy goods
and services, such as gas and diesel fuel. Everyone woul d pay
less in federal taxes. Utimately, the noney to fund public
projects and services is derived from union and nonunion
wor kers, he said. He stated his opposition to HB 155.

4:18:44 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked whether he was famliar with road
service areas in the Fairbanks area.

MR. MCDONALD answered yes, noting that his road was not plowed
once this year.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked whether he thought workers

putting gravel on roads should be paid LDB wages. People in
road service areas essentially tax thensel ves. The subdi vi si on
taxes itself to maintain its roads. She asked whether it is

fair for the subdivision to pay LDB wages to have gravel put on
a mle of road since it would cost nore than $2,000 to do so.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- March 9, 2011



MR. MCDONALD answered he thought it was fair because the workers
deserve to make a living wage. He said not everyone can go into
public service or make mllions of dollars by being a speaker.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT clarified for the record that he nakes
$500 nore per year over other |egislators.

4:20: 33 PM

WLLI AM CLAY, Menber, International Brotherhood of Electrical
Wrkers (IBEW Local 1547, stated that he is a wreman. He
spoke against HB 155 since makes it hard for l|ocal contractors,
uni on and nonunion, to conpetitively bid these jobs. He thought
it mght result in unsafe conditions. He also thought this bil
woul d hurt the | ocal econony.

4:21: 33 PM

ROBERT M TCHELL stated he is a construction worker. He offered
his belief that the changes being considered to the LDB
threshold are an attack on hinself, union, and nonuni on workers
that are Al aska residents. He thought this bill would open the
flood gates for out of state workers to take Al askan jobs and

perform them at mninum wage. He also thought the LDBA
provisions level the playing field for contractors to bid on
projects and receive the prevailing wage. He said, "It has
worked and will continue to work. That's why | oppose this
bill. Thank you."

4:22:31 PM

GARY SANDERSON, I nternational Brotherhood of Electrical Wrkers
(IBEW Local 1547, stated that he is a union electrician. He
said he strongly opposes raising the threshold from $2,000 to
$75,000. He offered his belief that the effect is to take noney
out of the pocket of the worker and shifts it to the owner. He
stated that given the high cost of living it makes no sense to
| oner wages of workers who are trying to make ends neet. | t
woul d also inport less qualified and |ess know edgeabl e workers
from other states and areas with lower cost of living who are
willing to take a | ower paying job. He thought it would drive
down Al aska's econony.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER recalled testinony that expanding wages
would bring in out of state workers who would do a poorer job
He asked for clarification on how nmuch construction work is
bei ng done at LDB wages and how nmuch at non-LDB wages.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- March 9, 2011



MR. SANDERSON answered that he did not know.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked how nuch non-LDB work is being done
by out of state workers. Essentially, he said he is trying to
determ ne how real the threat is to Alaskan LDB contractors.

MR.  SANDERSON responded that he thought the threat was
significant.

CHAI R OLSON answered that he would obtain the information from
t he Departnent of Labor for nenbers.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER stated that he was not trying to put
someone on the spot but had heard the argunent from several
peopl e and he wanted to get a better sense of the concern.

4:25:00 PM

TOM ALEXANDER, Retired, International Brotherhood of Electrical
Workers (1 BEW Local 1547, spoke in opposition to HB 155. He
related that the LDBA pronptes fair wage conpetition and works
to prevent undercutting. He recalled earlier testinobny wth
respect to lower paid people coming in from the Lower 48. He
said, "You get what you pay for and if you pay a substandard
wage, very likely you're going to get a substandard quality and

possi bly an unsafe product.” He nmentioned the electrical and
pl unbing trades require I|icensing. Li censi ng nust be enforced
so it raises the question of who will enforce the |aws. Several
years ago, he nonitored certified payrolls. He observed many
viol ations of unscrupul ous enpl oyers. Many enpl oyers conplied
but the unscrupulous ones would hired non-licensed or non-
citizens, and would overuse apprentices. He pointed out that

the Departnent of Labor & Wrkforce Devel opnment, Wage and Hour
personnel did not have enough staff to enforce and oversee the
I Ssues. He surmsed less staff would be available to oversee
conpl i ance now. He experienced contractors paying cash to
enpl oyees and undercut certified payroll j obs. These
contractors did not pay any benefits or withhold taxes so they
pocket ed huge profits. It is difficult for good contractors to
conpete against that type of person. He agreed it is not a
uni on ver sus nonuni on issue. The nonuni on person does not have
an advocat e. “I't is a matter of a fair standard wage for the
living standard of Alaska to be mmintained and be able to afford
and live in this great state,” he said.

4:28: 23 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- March 9, 2011



CHAI R OLSON announced that he would keep open public testinony
on HB 155.

[ HB 155 was hel d over.]
4:28:37 PM
The commttee took an at-ease from4:28 p.m to 4:31 p.m

HB 122- NATURCPATHS

4:31:35 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 122, "An Act relating to naturopaths and to the
practice of naturopathy; establishing an Al aska Naturopathic
Medi cal Board; authorizing nmedical assistance program coverage
of naturopathic services; anending the definition of 'practice
of medicine'; and providing for an effective date."

4:31:48 PM

SANDY W LLIAMS stated she has been seeing a |ocal naturopath
(ND) for about 10 years. She said she generally spends an hour
with the ND at each appointnment and obtains know edge to help
i nprove her health. She offered her belief that her ND is

interested in her well being. She would like to learn nore
about preventative care and believes her ND provides her wth
gui dance that has helped her achieve lifestyle changes. She

concl uded by saying she believes she deserves an opportunity to
choose an ND as her health care provider and spoke in support of
HB 122.

4:33:14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked whet her she thought her choices in
sel ecting an ND were constrai ned.

M5. WLLIAVS related she is a senior citizen and currently is
not taking any prescribed nedication. She related her
experience with doctors has been that appointnents are shorter
and the opportunity to speak is limted to one or two things.
She thought the first response for treatnment is to take a pill
and nedi cal doctors tend not to work on prevention or cause of
the ail ment.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 13- March 9, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked how passage of this HB 122,
establishing a ND's board would affect her life.

M5. WLLIAVS answered that she was unsure, but she thinks it
woul d expand her ND s ability to provide additional care. In
response to Representative Saddler, she stated her ND is Dr.
Em |y Kane.

4:34:46 PM
DAVID OTTESEN stated that for the past 25 years, the NDs have

been the primary health care providers for his famly. The NDs
have treated his famly for a variety of mnor health problens,

including ear, sinus, and wurinary tract infection. He has
worked with a nunmber of NDs and finds them to be conpetent and
pr of essi onal . "I think this legislation really should be

conpletely non-controversial since every other state on the West
Coast does have a Naturopathic Board," he said. He stated he
was aware sonme nenbers of the nedical community have expressed
concerned that NDs mght practice outside the scope of their
conpetence, but he is unaware of any evidence to suggest this
has happened in any other state, including Al aska.

4:36:48 PM

MR. OITESEN rel ated a scenario which highlighted his experience.
He stated that about five years ago he canme back from Africa
with an illness he initially thought was traveler's diarrhea,
which he initially contracted during the trip. After four or
five days he continued to experience fever and chills and was

getting worse. Hs ND, Emly Kane, realized he mght have
sonmet hing nore serious. She went to his honme and perfornmed a
bl ood test for malaria during a lunch hour. H s test came back

positive the next day. He went to Bartlett Menorial Hospita

and was transported via Medivac to Seattle since he had
concocted cerebral malaria, which is often fatal. He attributed
his treatment to Dr. Kane's care. He related his experience
points out the personalized care NDs provide. He reiterated she
came to his house on her lunch hour to performa blood test. He
commented this is not the first house call he has received from
an ND. Secondly, his experience provides an exanple of a ND
maki ng a good decision and referring a patient to appropriate
care. She referred himto the hospital and did not attenpt to
treat his condition with any herbal renedy. She told him he
needed to go to Bartlett Menorial Hospital and get treatnent.

It turns out the hospital did not have enough experience to
treat his illness either so he was transferred to the University

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -14- March 9, 2011



of Washington and treated by a specialist in tropical diseases.
Primary care providers also work in that nmanner since not each
provi der has expertise in all areas of nedicine. NDs work in
the same way, are aware of their limtations, and refer patients
when they are beyond their area of expertise.

MR. OITESEN pointed out that the U'S. including Al aska has a

shortage of primary care providers. NDs hel p individuals take
responsibility for their own illnesses, and work in partnership
with their clients to help them take steps for wellness. He

offered his belief that people eating better, exercising, and
taking steps for wellness is precisely the key to get a handle
on nedi cal costs. He stressed that ND s excel at well ness. He
urged support for HB 122.

4:41:12 PM

JANE MADI SON of fered her belief that Al askans deserve access to
bal anced approach of traditional nedicine and ND treatnent. She
expressed gratitude for the services the nedical comunity
provi des. Many nedical conditions can be prevented or treated
with diet, supplenents, and hornones which represents a snall
part of the services an ND provides that traditional nedical
doctors do not have tinme for, she said. The NDs' hands are tied

since they do not have a state board. Wiile NDs have
authorization to wite prescriptions in other states, they are
not authorized to wite prescriptions in Al aska. She stated
that HB 122 will solve many problens. She related that six
years ago she began to have serious thyroid issues and
conpl i cati ons. Representatives O son and Chenault observed her

downward spiral including huge weight gain. She said within one
month the condition was cured with a natural thyroid nedication
that was not available through a traditional M. Under the
present regul ations she nust see the ND, followed by a visit to
advanced nurse practitioner or M who <can wite her
prescription.

M5. MADI SON stressed that this bill could help others, such as
those who suffer from the side effects of chenotherapy since
ND s can help lessen the side effects significantly,
particularly with prescriptions. She surm sed that sone people
in Al aska are passing thenmselves off as NDs and sell products
for profit. A board could help stop this and raise the
st andar ds. Her |l ocal hospital cannot hire MDs unless they are
state certified. Therefore, her hospital cannot hire NDs. This
bill would allow her hospital to hire both the MD and the ND,
whi ch woul d provide balanced care. She pointed out that the

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -15- March 9, 2011



Mayo Cinic offers both NDs and physicians. This bill could

help the state since it is self insured. She related a
patient's history and her belief that NDs could have provided
less costly care for the patient. She naned a nunber of

ailments that could be hel ped by NDs, including treating thyroid
di sorders or adrenal gland disorders. These health problens can
be treated by either an MD or an ND, she said.

4:46: 39 PM

WAYNE ALDERHOLT spoke in support of HB 122. He stated he is a
36-year Al askan resident with about 18 years of experience as a
consuner/ pati ent of nat ur opat hi c medi ci ne. Tradi tional
al | opat hi ¢ nedi ci ne and naturopathic nedicine each has a role in
Al aska and both are necessary for the health care system He
related that NDs excel in prevention and managenent of chronic
condi ti ons. Traditional nedicinal doctors excel in energent
conditions requiring aggressive intervention and damage control.
An unintentional but critical omssion in the 1986 enabling
legislation for NDs left the profession wthout a governing

structure. This bill would provide an independent board to
oversee NDs. Prescription ability should be allowed and nmanaged
by the respective boards. Wth respect to malpractice, once

both boards are established it would be up to those bodies to
create clear standards and enforce them He served on his | ocal

hospital board and he |earned two things. First, the majority
of malpractice is generated by a few practitioners. Most
mal practice incidents are preventable. The nedical comunity
can police thensel ves. He related that he previously subnitted
witten testinony. He referred to a flyer he picked up at a
conf erence. He read, "Menbers of both professional bodies neet
to share experiences, ideas, and skills on specific areas of
health care for the betternment of the participants and their
patients.” He shared that the national conference had seven MDs

and four NDs who presented. He described his own diagnosis and
ND treatnent, noting he had to travel out of state and sel ected
Arizona for treatnent. He said the clinic he attended provided
cutting edge treatnent.

4:51: 20 PM

MARY ANN FOLAND, Physician, |Imedi ate Past President, Al aska
Acadeny of Family Physicians; President-Elect, Al aska State
Medi cal Association, stated she was a famly practice physician
for over 34 years in Anchorage. She related that she has been
in contact with other groups including the Physician's Assistant
Associ ation, the Anmerican Osteopathic Association, and the State

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 16- March 9, 2011



Medi cal Board. Al'l of the groups she has contacted think this

bill is a bad idea. The goal of NDs is to expand their practice
to be the sanme as primary care physicians. She expressed
concern about this, not the least of which is the cost of a new
regul atory board. Using doctor in the title or physician

creates confusion and is m sleading. She referred to a recent
study that showed 90 percent of the people surveyed think only
licensed nedical doctors should use the term physician. She
highlighted the difference in training, experience, and
conti nui ng educati on. She offered her belief that NDs do not
have the breadth or depth in education provided in traditiona
nmedi cal school . The NDs are not required to have graduate
residency that is essential for patient safety. The nost
dangerous thing she says she does every day is to pull out the
pad from her pocket to wite a prescription. Even if NDs do not
have the ability to wite prescriptions for controlled

subst ances, she t hought many drug i nteractions and
contraindi cati ons and dangers in prescribing. She said, "There
are no safe, sinple drugs. | ask you to please to not sinplify
this or consider it just a matter of conpetition.” She did not
think there were enough naturopaths in the state to really be
conpetition for physicians in Al aska. She cautioned nenbers
that this is about safety. This bill is a "wants" list and not
a "needs" |ist. She did not think the NDs practice should be
expanded.

4:54.:20 PM

DR. FOLAND characterized the public's trust of physicians as a
sacred trust. She reiterated that the groups she previously
mentioned think this is a bad idea. She read, "A physician is a
person who has successfully conpleted the prescribed course of
studies in nedicine, in a nedical school officially recognized
by the country in which it is |located and who has acquired the
requisite qualifications for |licensing in the practice of
medi ci ne. " She then read the definition for naturopathy, "A
system of treating diseases |argely enploying natural agencies
such as air, sunshine, etc. and rejecting the use of drugs and
medi cation. " She concluded that this is about training,
experience, and stated m ssion. She urged nenbers to please
vote no on HB 122.

[HB 122 was hel d over.]

4:56: 34 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -17- March 9, 2011



ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
4:56 P.M

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- March 9, 2011



